
  
 

 

 

SELECT BOARD 

BUDGET WORK SESSION AGENDA 

MONDAY, OCTOBER 24, 2016 - 5:30 PM 

HOPKINTON TOWN HALL 

  

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

i. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

 

II. ADMINISTRATIVE 

i. Approval of Consent Agenda  Action Required (02) 

ii. Approval of the Minutes-Joint with School Board– October 17, 2016 Action Required (03) 

iii. Approval of the Public Meeting Minutes – October 17, 2016 Action Required (04) 

iv. Approval of the Non-Public Meeting Minutes – October 17, 2016-Session I  Action Required 

v. Approval of the Non-Public Meeting Minutes – October 17, 2016-Session I I Action Required 

 

III. BUDGET PRESENTATION (05) 

i. 5:30 – Budget Introduction – Neal Cass 

ii. 5:45 – Planning/Zoning – Karen Robertson 

iii. 6:00 – Town Clerk/Tax Collector – Chuck Gangel 

iv. 6:15 – Cemetery – Don Lane, Judy Hampe, Bob Gerseny 

v. 6:30 – Conservation Commission – Jed Merrow 

vi. 6:45 – Library – Donna Dunlap 

vii. 7:00 – Finance – Deb Gallant 

viii. 7:15 – Human Services – Marilyn Cerriello-Bresaw 

ix. 7:30 – Executive/ Assessing/Legal/EDC/Health – Neal Cass 

 

IV. Update on Stickney Hill Road Bridge (06) 

 

  

V. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Select Board may enter into Non Public Session, if so voted, under the Terms and Conditions of  

RSA 91-A:3 II a~e 

All items on this agenda are subject to change without notice. 

Town of Hopkinton, NH 
Office of Select Board  330 Main Street  Hopkinton, NH 03229-2627 

Telephone:  (603) 746-3170     E-mail:  selectmen@hopkinton-nh.gov 

Fax:  (603) 746-2952    Web Address:  www.hopkinton-nh.gov 



TOWN OF HOPKINTON                                                                           

New Hampshire 

Hopkinton Select Board 

Hopkinton School Board 

 

                                             Joint Meeting 

                              

Monday, October 17, 2016 

5:30 PM 
Slusser Center 

 

 

PUBLIC SESSION 

 

School Board Members Present:  Dave Luneau, Henry Yianakopolis, William Jones and Matt 

Cairns. 

 

Select Board Members Present:  Jim O’Brien, Ken Traum, Sue Strickford, Bob Gerseny, and 

Steve Lux. 

 

Staff Present:  Steve Chamberlin-Superintendent of Schools, Robin Buchanan-Administrative 

Assessing Assistant, and Neal Cass-Town Administrator 

 

1. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance  

Hopkinton Select Board Chair Jim O’Brien opened the meeting at 5:30 pm and introduced the 

Select Board and School Board Members in attendance.  Mr. Chamberlin led the Pledge of 

Allegiance. 

 

2. Additions/Deletions from Agenda  

 

3. Public Comment (1)  

 

4. Comments from the Hopkinton School Board and Hopkinton Select Board  

Mr. O’Brien thanked Town Administrator Neal Cass and Superintendent Steve Chamberlin for 

keeping both Boards on track. 

 

Mr. Luneau thanked the Select Board and the Town Administrator and the School 

Administration for working closely together and noted that the meetings are very positive. 

 

Mr. Cairns stated that budget season is beginning and the School Board will be meeting with the 

Budget Committee on Tuesday, October 18, 2016. 

 

Other members of each Board attended the Cemetery Walk and Red Hawks football over the 

weekend.  



Select & School Boards Joint Meeting 10-17-16 2 

 

 

Mrs. Strickford stated that HopkintonCares “Got Projects” was held on Saturday, October 15, 

2016 and it pairs the elderly who need projects done with those in the community that can do 

those projects.  She also noted that Mr. Chamberlin and Mr. Cass were among the volunteers 

who participated.   

 

Mr. Lux stated it was nice to see that the sidewalks are almost completed.  

 

5. Presentations and Staff Reports 

Bob Gerseny and Meredith Astles, Economic Development Committee (EDC) Presentation:  

Mr. Gerseny stated that in the past, the EDC has had a series of up and down.  The committee is 

now focused on the “big picture.”   He further stated that the EDC is trying to build an 

environment where people want to work and live.  Mr. Gerseny continued that the EDC is 

planning a big presentation for the 2018 Town Meeting to open opportunities to enhance 

retailing, starter homes, work force house, senior housing and bring businesses to town, however, 

the EDC understands that finances are an issue. 

 

Mr. Gerseny stated that for the 2017 Town Meeting, the EDC has 3 amendments that will be on 

the ballot, all concerning zoning changes.  Currently, many properties are in two districts.  The 

EDC is proposing to move the zoning lines to follow the property lines in the area of Route 

202/9 and Route 127 (near Dunkin Donuts in Henniker), in the Maple Street area and on Kast 

Hill.  Mr. Gerseny stated the EDC is currently in talks with Francis Hart who own the large farm 

on Kast Hill. Mr. Cairns inquired as to what the School could do to help.  Mr. Gerseny stated just 

continue to be excellent.  Mr. Cairns stated the School has many talented students and perhaps 

the EDC has some intern opportunities.  Ms. Astles stated she is very interested with that 

prospect and would like to discuss it further at another time.   

 

Mr. Gerseny mentioned the forming of the Contoocook Chamber of Commerce.  Ms. Astles also 

noted the new town website and its focus on economic development. 

 

6. Items for Discussion  

a. Town of Gilford – Initiative – State Support of Retirement:  Mr. O’Brien stated that the 

Town of Gilford sent an open letter to the State to reinstate the payments to NH Retirement that 

the State stopped paying and had shifted the burden to the towns and cities.  Now the State has a 

surplus and should meet its commitment to towns and cities with regards to NH Retirement 

payments.  Mr. O’Brien inquired if the School would like to co-sign that letter with the Select 

Board, as the schools were also affected by the cuts.  Mr. Luneau believes this is a good idea and 

that the State needs to honor its commitment.  Mr. Cairns stated that he will bring it to the School 

Board at tomorrow’s meeting for a vote.  Mr. O’Brien will draft the letter.   

 

b. Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILOT) – Funds and Legislation:  Mr. Luneau stated that after 

reading an article in the Concord Monitor that was unclear about how PILOTS (Payment in Lieu 

of Taxes) work.  It was noted that the Town gets 100% of PILOTS.  Mr. Cass explained that 

PILOTS are on properties that are considered tax exempt.  However, many of these property 

owners enter into PILOTS, as they do use town services and the PILOTS are a form of 



Select & School Boards Joint Meeting 10-17-16 3 

 

reimbursement.  Mr. Cass also stated that most of the exempt properties in Hopkinton belong to  

town, state, and federal government.   

 

c. Georges’ Park and Related Items: Mr. Traum stated that George’s Park is owned by the 

Town and not the School; however George’s Park is used for school activities.  Discussion 

ensued, with regards to the School obtaining ownership or management of the park.  Mr. Cairns 

stated there has been some talk of George’s Park during School Board meetings; however, the 

School Board needs to do more research on the matter.    

 

d. Hopkinton/Hillsboro-Deering Football Program:  Mr. Luneau stated this is the first year 

that the Red Hawks are playing at varsity level.  There are 35 players, 61% from Hopkinton.  

The biggest concern is the home game venue.  Right now, games are played at Houston field.  

However, there is a lack of parking, and bathroom facilities are not adequate.  He noted it was 

cut from the budget last year, but was put back in the budget at Town Meeting.  Mr. Luneau 

stated it is clearly an important part of the school. 

 

Mr. O’Brien stated the Board has been supportive of football; however the Town struggles with 

field use.  The Field Schedule is difficult to put together due to the amount of teams and lack of 

fields that we have.  The cost of maintenance, the lack of parking and bathroom facilities are real 

issues and we need to have a better handle on it. 

 

Mr. Gerseny inquired if the School Board has a plan for the future of football.  Mr. Chamberlin 

stated that originally Hillsboro had the majority of players on the team and there was talk of 

building a field in Hillsboro for the games.  However, Hillsboro Deering was not able to invest 

the money into it.  Mr. Chamberlin stated the football program will be reviewed at the end of this 

season and he will have a better handle on it after that meeting.   

 

e. Annual Meeting Schedules  

i. School District Meeting Date – Saturday, March 11, 2017  

ii. Town Meeting Date – Saturday, March 18, 2017 

Mr. Cass stated that voting will be held on Tuesday, March 14, 2017.  

 

f. Town Initiatives:  Working with EDC to bring more economic development to town.  Mr. 

Traum stated the Road Committee is working with Complete Streets.  Complete Streets goal is to 

have all streets safe for all types of traffic, cars, bicycles, and pedestrians.    

 

g. School District Initiatives:  There will be a deep review of all school policies, as some of the 

policies are outdated. 

 

The Steering Committee with regards to the school buildings, will be receiving a new charge for 

the committee.  It will be based on three (3) buildings for a plan and costs for correcting security 

issues within the school. 

 

h. Possible Budget Drivers:   



Select & School Boards Joint Meeting 10-17-16 4 

 

i. School District:  Mr. Cairns stated the drivers this year will be the cost of health insurance and 

full day kindergarten.   

 

ii. Town:  Mr. O’Brien stated the goal for the Town is not to increase the tax rate; however, we 

have committed to a salary increase for employees.  Also health insurance costs will increase the 

Town budget as well.   

 

i. Next Meeting Date:  To be determined. 

 

7. Public Comment (2):  Ginni Haines would like the School Board meeting to be noted on the 

Meeting Calendar on the Town’s website.  Mr. O’Brien stated the information needs to be sent to 

Ms. Buchanan. 

 

8. Adjournment:  There being no further business for the joint boards, the meeting adjourned at 

6:55 pm. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Robin Buchanan 

Administrative Assessing Assistant  

 



 

 

 
 

SELECT BOARD 

PUBLIC MEETING MINUTES 

MONDAY, OCTOBER 17, 2016 

HOPKINTON TOWN HALL 

APPROVED ___________ 

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

Select Board Chair Jim O’Brien called this regular meeting of the Select Board to order at 7:00 p.m. on 

Monday, October 17, 2016 at the Town Hall.   

 

 

Members Present: Jim O’Brien, Ken Traum, Sue B. Strickford, Steve Lux, Jr. and Bob Gerseny 

   

Staff Present: Neal Cass, Town Administrator, and Robin Buchanan, Administrative Assessing 

Assistant 

 

Public Present:  Ken Wilkens, Janet Krzyzaniak , Shawn Murray, Interim Fire Chief, Chuck Gangel, 

Town Clerk/Tax Collector, Steve Pecora Police Chief, Richard Walter and members of 

the Hopkinton Police Department 

 

 

II. ADMINISTRATIVE 

The Board members reviewed documents for signature and approved unanimously (5-0) the Consent Agenda, 

on motion made by Mr. Traum and seconded by Mr. Gerseny.   

 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE MANIFEST 31,327.20 

 
50,267.42 

 
  

PAYROLL MANIFEST 64,675.44 

  BUILDING PERMITS 
 YaYa Organics change of use lt manufacturing assembly 633 Maple  Map 227 Lot 44 
 Hopkinton Woman's Club Raffle Permit 
 Jason Holmes new residence Moran Rd Map 215 Lot 14.2 
 SunRay Solar solar 852 Broad Cove Map 247 Lot 15  
 Michael White garage 178 S. Shore Dr Map 258 Lot 55 
 Brian Roy Renovation 781 Hopkinton Road Map 258 Lot 29 

  

 LETTER OF COMMITMENT-Household Hazardous Waste Clean Up 

  

 

Town of Hopkinton, NH 
Office of Selectmen  330 Main Street  Hopkinton, NH 03229-2627 

 

Telephone:  (603) 746-3170         E-mail:  selectmen@hopkinton-nh.gov 

Fax:  (603) 746-2952          Web Address:  www.hopkinton-nh.gov 



Hopkinton Select Board Minutes 10-17-16 2 

 
APPOINTMENT 

 Richard C. Walter, Jr. Police new hire part-time 

  

 PAF Police Department 

 Part time hire Richard Walter, Jr. 

   

 INTENT TO CUT 

 Shaun Geary & Ashley Fox Map 216 Lot 9  

  

 Thank you letter to Bob Strine re:  Rowell Bridge 

  

Approval of Minutes: 

The Board reviewed the Select Board Meeting Minutes of Monday, October 3, 2016.  Mr. Traum made a 

motion, seconded by Mr. Lux, to approve the Public Meeting Minutes of October 3, 2016.  There being no 

discussion, Chair O’Brien called for a vote. 

 

VOTE:  O’Brien, Traum, Strickford. Lux and Gerseny voting in favor of the motion; 

 no votes against; MOTION APPROVED 5-0. 

 

The Board reviewed the Select Board Non Public Meeting Minutes of Monday, October 3, 2016, Session I.   

Mr. Traum made a motion, seconded by Mrs. Strickford, to approve the Non Public Meeting Minutes of 

October 3, 2016, Session I. 

 

VOTE:  O’Brien, Traum, Strickford and Gerseny voting in favor of the motion; 

 no votes against; Lux abstaining. MOTION APPROVED 4-0-1. 

 

The Board reviewed the Select Board Non Public Meeting Minutes of Monday, October 3, 2016, Session II.   

Mr. Traum made a motion, seconded by Mrs. Strickford, to approve the Non Public Meeting Minutes of 

October 3, 2016, Session II. 

 

VOTE:  O’Brien, Traum, Strickford and Gerseny voting in favor of the motion; 

 no votes against; Lux abstaining. MOTION APPROVED 4-0-1. 

 

VII. PUBLIC FORUM 

Janet Krzyzaniak inquired if the Hopkinton Fair Association appointed any Hopkinton residents to the Board.  

Chairman O’Brien stated we sent them a list of prospective board members, however, there was no requirement 

for the Fair Board to put any resident on their Board.  Mr. Cass will set up a meeting after budgets are done. 

 

Mrs. Krzyzaniak also stated that the Highway Department is doing a great job.  

 

 

IV. APPOINTMENTS 

 1. Swearing in of Part-time Patrol Officer Richard Walter 

Police Chief Steve Pecora gave a brief history of Mr. Walter’s 20 years in law enforcement.   

Chairman O’Brien swore Mr. Walter in. 

 

 2.  Chuck Gangel, Town Clerk/Tax Collector NON PUBLIC SESSION 

NON-PUBLIC SESSION IV-RSA 91-A: 3 IV (a) Personnel  

Mr. Gerseny moved to go into a non-public session regarding the hiring of a public employee under the 

provisions of Nonpublic Session RSA 91-A: 3 II (b).  Mr. Lux seconded the motion.   



Hopkinton Select Board Minutes 10-17-16 3 

 

 

Mr. O’Brien recused himself from the nonpublic session. 

VOTE: Select Board Members Strickford, Lux, Gerseny and Vice Chair Traum voted in 

favor, and the Vice Chair declared the motion to have carried unanimously (4–0). 

The Board, Town Clerk/Tax Collector Chuck Gangel and the Town Administrator went into nonpublic session, 

as recorded separately, at 7:15 p.m.  The Board returned to public session at 8:00 p.m. 

Vote to seal nonpublic minutes: 

Mr. Gerseny moved to seal the minutes of the just completed nonpublic session indefinitely.  Mrs. Strickford 

seconded the motion. 

VOTE: Select Board Members Strickford, Lux, Gerseny, and Vice Chair Traum voted in 

favor, and the Vice Chair declared the motion to have carried unanimously (4–0). 

 3.  Shawn Murray, Interim Fire Chief 

Interim Fire Chief Murray updated the Board on the Fire Department with his 6 month report, including 

administration overview, facilities, apparatus, fire inspections/prevention and personnel/organization.  Interim 

Fire Chief Murray stated the Ladies Auxiliary will be having a Blood Drive on Friday, October 28, 2016 from 

2:00 pm to 7:00 pm at the Contoocook Fire Station.  Mrs. Strickford inquired about recruiting volunteers.  

Interim Fire Chief Murray stated recruitment needs to be; however, there are costs involved, as well as 

availability of classes, purchasing of protective clothing and commitment, many do not finish.  Discussion 

ensued, with regards to moving forward with hiring a permanent fire chief.  Discussion ensued, with regard to 

the delegation of work.   

 

A discussion ensued, with regards to second ambulance call response time.   

 

Mrs. Strickford inquired about a transition point as she is not in favor of keeping an interim chief for 18 months.  

Interim Fire Chief Murray stated there is still more work to be done in order for a permanent chief to transition 

into the position.   

 

IX. OTHER 

Janet Krzyzaniak inquired as to the total amount of the Road Bond.  Mr. Cass replied $2.2 million.  Mrs. 

Krzyzaniak inquired as to how much of that has been expended.  Mr. Cass replied less than $600,000. 

 

Mr. Lux noted the work done to Rowell Bridge.  Mr. Lux also stated that he has completed the perambulation 

with Henniker.  It was an 8 mile line and it took all day to complete, as some of the terrain was very rough. 

 

Mr. Lux also noted that Halloween at the Depot will be held on Monday, October 31, 2016 from5:00 pm to 8:00 

pm.   

 

Chairman O’Brien stated he will not be at the meeting on Monday, October 24, 2016. 

 

Mr. Lux left the meeting. 

 

NON-PUBLIC SESSION IV-RSA 91-A: 3 IV (a) Personnel  

Mr. Traum moved to go into a non-public session regarding a personnel issue under the provisions of Nonpublic 

Session RSA 91-A: 3 II (a).  Mr. Gerseny seconded the motion.   



Hopkinton Select Board Minutes 10-17-16 4 

 

VOTE: Select Board Members Traum, Strickford, Gerseny, and Chair O’Brien voted in 

favor, and the Chair declared the motion to have carried unanimously (4–0). 

The Board Interim Fire Chief Shawn Murray, and the Town Administrator went into nonpublic session, as 

recorded separately, at 8:42 p.m.  The Board returned to public session at 9:43 p.m. 

Vote to seal nonpublic minutes: 

Mr. Traum moved to seal the minutes of the just completed nonpublic session for a period of 2 years.  Mr. 

Gerseny seconded the motion. 

VOTE: Select Board Members Traum, Strickford, Gerseny, and Chair O’Brien voted in 

favor, and the Chair declared the motion to have carried unanimously (4–0). 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

There being no further business, motion by Mr. Traum, seconded by Mrs. Strickford to adjourn the meeting.  

Vote 4-0 in favor of the motion.  The meeting adjourned at 945 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Robin Buchanan 

Administrative Assessing Assistant 














